
 

March 4, 2024 Town Council 
Meeting (Regular) Agenda 

March 04, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
City Hall – 700 B Street 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

A. Oscar Adkins, William Diamond, Robert Leslie, Joseph Ratcliff 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Reading and Approval of Minutes 

A. Minutes from Regular Meeting February 5, 2024 

V. Treasurer’s Report 

A. Account Balances 

B. Approval of Expenditures 

VI. Delegations 

A. Fire Chief Robert Robson would like to address council regrading the proposed Wayne County 
EMS Levy 

B. Resident Sharon Walker would like to address the council regarding utility notices that are sent 
to utility customers. 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 

A. Third Street Pump Station 

B. Special Levy Election 

C. Hubbard Heights Sewer (Ongoing) 

D. March FY 2024-2025 Budget Meetings 

E. Ramsdell House added to NPS Underground Railroad Network 

VIII. Old Business 

A. Proposed Water Utility Tariff 

B. Second Reading of Ordinance to Create Planning Commission 

IX. New Business 

A. Council Resignation - Ronald Jarrell 

B. Vacant Council Seat Appointment 

C. Greenwood Storm Sewer 

D. Middle School Baseball/Softball Field Donation Request 

E. Fire Chief Robert Robson has inquired about the possible purchase of the Towns Box Trailer 
for use by the Ceredo Volunteer Fire Department.  

X. Other Reports 

A. Police Report - Chief Poston will address council on various activities within the Ceredo Police 
Department. 

1



B. Maintenance Report - Maintenance Supervisor Matthew Myles will address council on current 
and future issues pertaining to the public works department(s). 

XI. Adjournment 

2



 

February 5, 2024 Town Council 
Meeting (Regular) Minutes 

February 05, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
City Hall – 700 B Street 

 
The Town of Ceredo Town Council met in regular session on Monday, February 5th, 2024, at Ceredo 
Town Hall. The Mayor, Paul A. Billups, called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Those present included 
the Mayor, Paul A. Billups, and Councilmen Steve Diamond, Ron Jarrell, Robert Leslie, Oscar Adkins 
and Joe Ratcliff. 
 
Reading and Approval of the Minutes 
The Mayor asked if Council had any additions or corrections to the minutes of the January 8th, 2024, 
Regular Session. None being heard and on a motion by Steve Diamond and a second by Bob Leslie, 
Council voted to accept the January 8th, 204 Regular Session minutes as presented. All were in favor, 
motion passed. 
Treasurer’s Report 
Treasurer, Robert Leslie, presented Council with the account balances for each account and the 
expenditures for January 2024. The Mayor asked if Council had any questions on the Treasurer’s 
Report. None being heard, on a motion by Robert Leslie and a second by Joe Ratcliff, Council voted to 
accept the Treasurer’s report for January 2024 as presented. All were in favor, and the motion carried. 
Ceredo Volunteer Fire Department 
Chief Rob Robson of the Ceredo Volunteer Fire Department addressed Council regarding the status of 
EMS service in Wayne County, and the number of calls that Ceredo EMS is currently handling outside 
the town. 
Chief Robson also requested a letter of approval from the Council directed to the Wayne County 
Commission regarding the purchase of new fire hydrant adapters for 58 hydrants in the town. By 
consensus, Council agreed that a letter of approval for the change be directed to the Commission. 
Jordan Branch Pump Station 
Matt Myles, maintenance foreman, addressed council concerning the Jordan Branch Pump Station. 
During recent high water, it was discovered that the outflow pipes from the pump station were leaking 
and that the sluice gate on top of the levee appears to have a bend in the screw rod. The Mayor 
expressed that both issues should be immediately remediated, and with the consent of Council, the 
Mayor will contact an engineering firm to have the issues inspected and a cost estimate for repairs. 
Outdoor Advertising – Billboards 
The Mayor informed Council that an inquiry was made concerning the erection of a billboard on private 
property near Sixth Street West and the railroad. Council discussed an overview of the current outdoor 
advertising ordinance, and it was agreed that the matter would be tabled pending the presentation of 
formal drawings. 
Armstrong Utilities Franchise Agreement 
The Mayor informed Council that the current franchise agreement allowing Armstrong Utilities to 
provide service to the town will expire July 31, 2024. A renewal franchise agreement was presented, 
having a ten-year term with an option to extend a second term of ten years. The franchise tariff, 
established by the FCC, is 5% of gross revenue. The franchise is not exclusive. On a motion by Steve 
Diamond and a second by Oscar Adkins, followed by a unanimous favorable vote, the Mayor was given 
authority to execute the agreement. 

3

Section IV, Item A.



Building Code Revision 
An ordinance revising Article 1711 of the Codified Ordinances, Building Code, was presented. The 
revision provides current references to the state and federal building and fire codes, all adopted by the 
town. On a motion by Bob Leslie and a second by Oscar Adkins, followed by a unanimous vote of 
Council, the ordinance revising and updating Article 1711 et seq., was approved. 
Ordinance to Create Planning Commission 
The Mayor presented a proposed ordinance to create the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission, a 
commission required to formulate a long-term plan for the future development and possible zoning of 
the town. After reading and discussion, a motion by Steve Diamond and a second by Ronnie Jarrell, the 
first reading passed.  
Purchasing Card (PCard) Program Proposal 
The Town Clerk presented Council with the recommendation to switch to a visa purchasing card 
program over the current use of debit cards. After discussion, the Mayor proposed a limit of $25,000 to 
be pooled by all cards and users on the account. On a motion by Steve Diamond and a second by 
Oscar Adkins, followed by a unanimous favorable vote, the Mayor was given authority to execute the 
agreement. 
Adjournment 
No further business was brought before council. The meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       Paul A. Billups, Mayor 
 
 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       ATTEST: Jacob M. Skeens, Town Clerk 

4

Section IV, Item A.



 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
PERIOD: FEBRUARY 2024 
 
 

General Fund 

 Ending Balance $121,472 
 
Water Works 
 
 Ending Balance $134,179 
 
Sewer Fund 

 Ending Balance $354,198 
 
Coal Severance 

 Ending Balance $3,480 
         
Special Levy 

 Ending Balance $69,371 
 
Rainy Day Fund 

 Balance   $295,000 

5

Section V, Item A.



DATE VENDOR PAYMENT

2/1/2024 ENCOVA INSURANCE $1,229.00
MONTHLY PREMIUM

2/1/2024 KENNY QUEEN ACE HARDWARE $239.85
MULTIPLE DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES

2/7/2024 WV TREASURY - PEIA $10,356.68
GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

2/8/2024 FREEDOM CONTRACTING $1,500.00
CONTRACT WORK - SIDEWALKS

2/8/2024 TOD DARST $1,350.00
CONTRACT WORK - BUILDING INSPECTIONS & CODE ENFORCEMENT

2/8/2024 CIVIS PLUS $2,840.00
ANNUAL CODE AND HOSTING FEE

2/8/2024 FP FINANCE PROGRAM $295.40
POSTAGE AND MAILING FEE - EQUIPMENT

2/8/2024 SUNLIFE FINANCIAL $492.90
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE

2/9/2024 CITY OF KENOVA $4,500.00
QUARTERLY DISPATCH FEE

2/16/2024 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES $438.36
MULTIPLE DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES

2/16/2024 BERRY'S SAW & MOWER $308.95
SAW BLADES

2/16/2024 KENNY QUEEN ACE HARDWARE $418.68
MULTIPLE DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES

2/22/2024 WV BRIM $50,089.00
QUARTERLY INSURANCE PREMIUM

2/22/2024 POSTALIA TDC $1,500.00
POSTAGE - WATER/SEWER

2/26/2024 ADVANCE TRUCK PARTS $1,399.00
GARBAGE TRUCK EQUIPMENT

2/26/2024 THE HERALD DISPATCH $450.00
NEW CRESCENT PRINTING

2/1/2024 FREEDOM CONTRACTING $1,500.00
CONTRACT WORK - WATER LINE REPAIR

2/1/2024 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS $221.04
VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIR

2/1/2024 CONSOLIDATED PIPE & SUPPLY $441.28
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

2/1/2024 HUNTINGTON GRAVEL & SAND $328.00
CRUSHER ROCK

2/1/2024 MERIDITY FRERRY $1,000.00
SETTLEMENT FOR DAMAGES

2/9/2024 SERVICE PUMP & SUPPLY $10,400.00
PUMP REPAIR/REBUILD & SERVICE

2/9/2024 STATE ELECTRIC $367.28
ELECTRICAL PARTS FOR VARIOUS PUMPS

2/16/2024 KENNY QUEEN ACE HARDWARE $316.10
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

2/5/2024 DEAN'S REFRIGERATION $2,005.60
HEAT/AIR UNITS & INSTALL - WELLNESS CENTER

2/8/2024 FREEDOM CONTRACTING $1,500.00
SIDEWALK WORK

2/9/2024 THE WELLS GROUP $1,546.00
CONCRETE

WATER

SEWER

SPECIAL LEVY

EXPENDITURE REPORT
TOWN COUNCIL

FEBRUARY 2024

GENERAL FUND

6

Section V, Item B.



7

Section VI, Item A.



8

Section VI, Item A.



9

Section VI, Item A.



10

Section VI, Item A.



11

Section VI, Item A.



12

Section VI, Item A.



TOWN OF CEREDO

$25.00 Reconnect Charge:

3/4/2024Disconnect Date: 

$192.54Total Amount Due: 

Delinquent Amount: $92.02

123456Account No: 

Account Information

2/22/2024

PO BOX 691

CEREDO, WV  25507

(304) 453-4675

SAMPLE CUSTOMER
PO BOX 9999
CEREDO, WV 25507-9999

SAMPLE

13

Section VI, Item B.



Sewer Form No.1

(Sewer Rule 6.8.2)

CEREDO WATER WORKS

NOTICE OF SCHEDULED TERMINATION OF SERVICE AND CUSTOMER RIGHTS

We have scheduled your water service provided at the address listed above for termination on or after the date listed above. This action has been 

taken for the following reason: Overdue Balance/Non-Payment.

If your service is terminated, you may be subject to additional charges involving reconnect fees and deposit requirements in order to restore 

service. If your service is terminated for any payment or non-payment issues, the full account balance, including additional fees will be required to 

be paid before service is restored.

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO CHALLENGE THE TERMINATION IF YOU BELIEVE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS APPLY TO YOU:

1. Any portion of the bill is in dispute

2. You are being charged for service not received

3. The information above is incorrect

4. You are unable to pay the bill in accordance with the billing, and termination of service would be especially dangerous to the health or safety of

a member of your household.

5. You are able to pay only installments.

If the reason for your challenge is 1, 2 or 3 above, you will have to pay any amount not in dispute. If the reason for your challenge is 4 or 5, we will 

attempt to negotiate a deferred payment agreement with you.

YOU MUST NOTIFY US BEFORE THE DATE OF THE TERMINATION IN ORDER TO PROTECT YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THIS RULE:

CEREDO WATER WORKS

700 B St. | PO Box 691 | Ceredo, WV 25507

Phone: (304) 453-4675 | Email: utilities@ceredowv.gov

Hours: Monday – Friday 8:00 AM – 4:00 PM Excluding Holidays

You should also inform us if you are 65 years of age or older, or regardless of age, if you are physically, mentally, or emotionally incapacitated.

Once you have notified us of your challenge, we will schedule a meeting at our business office located at 700 B Street, Ceredo, WV 25507 and try to 

resolve your problem. At your option, the discussion of your challenge may be made over the telephone. IF YOU ARE NOT SATISFIED WITH OUR 

DECISION AT THIS MEETING, YOU WILL HAVE SEVEN DAYS IN WHICH TO FILE A CHALLENGE WITH THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF 

WEST VIRGINIA. You will be required to pay your current bill while the challenge is pending. There is no charge associated with filing a challenge 

and you may do so without the assistance of an attorney.

To file a challenge with the PSC, you may call this toll-free telephone number 1-800-642-8544 or write to this address:

Utility Challenge

Public Service Commission of West Virginia

PO Box 812

Charleston, WV 25323

If you are in need of assistance to pay your bill, you should contact the following agencies:

WV DHHR – Wayne County (304) 272-6311 dhhr.wv.gov

WV Housing Development Fund (304) 391-8600 www.wvhdf.com

Account No: 

Total Amount Due: 

Delinquent Amount: 

Reconnect Charge:

Account Information

123456

$25.00 

3/4/2024Disconnect Date: 

Meter Information

Service Type Electronic ID Serial Number 

SEWER 0 00000000N

WATER$192.54

$92.02

CEREDO, WV  25507

TOWN OF CEREDO

PO BOX 691
SAMPLE CUSTOMER
PO BOX 9999
CEREDO, WV 25507-9999

SAMPLE

14

Section VI, Item B.



150CSR7 

pf 'tmical incremental cost" Der thousand aallons of water on 
usacre a bove the historic usacre. The Commission shall from time 
to time establish its estimate of "tmical incremental cost ,, bv 
order. 

d .  However, in future rate cases the utilitv's 
incremental cost of treatment shall be determined and the rate 
placed in an amroDriate tariff as the leak adiustment rate. 
After a rate has been determined in a rate case, the utilitv 
shall not have the oDtion to us e the Commission's estimate of 
"tvDica1 incremental cost" found in 4.4.3.c. 

& The water utilitv shall, after determining 
that a leak adiustment must be made, notifv the sewer utilitv 
of the amount of the adiustment in crallons and the reason for 
makincr the ad1 'ustment. 

4.8. Utility discontinuance of service. 

4.8.1. Notice of discontinuance -- 
a. No utility shall discontinue service to any 

customer for violation of rules and regulations or for- non- 
payment of bills, without first having tried diligently to 
induce the customer to comply with its rules and regulations, 
or to pay his bills. 

b. Service shall actually be discontinued only 
after at least ten (10) days' written notice shall have been 
given to the customer by the utility that bills are ten 
(10) or more days delinquent, or that the violation of rules 
must cease: Provided, however, That where conditions hazardous 
to life or property is found to exist on the customer's 
premises, the water may be shut off without notice in advance. 
Where written notice is' required it must be sent first class 
mail, address correction requested. Written notice shall 
comply with Form 14-W. The written notice shall become void if 
the utility has not discontinued service within thirty (30) 
days of the date indicated on the notice for termination. The 
water utility shall attempt personal contact with the customer 
immediately before termination of water service for either a 
delinquent water or sewer bill, The inability to make personal 
contact shall in no way prevent the water utility from 
terminating service. In no case shall the utility discontinue 
service on Friday, Saturday, Sunday, or a day prior to a 
holiday unless an emergency exists. All disconnections shall 
be pelrformed between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. The 
utility shall accept payment at the customer's premises in lieu 
of diScontinuing service for either a delinquent water or sewer 

15

Section VI, Item B.

Jacob Skeens
Highlight



150CSR7 

bill. The payment must be for the entire amount of the 
delinquency to prevent termination. 

c. If a landlord of a master-metered apartment 
building, motel, hotel or other multiple-unit dwelling is 
responsible for payment of a utility bill, written notice of 
termination shall be placed at a location readily available for 
public inspection at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled 
termination of that apartment building, motel, hotel or other 
multiple-unit dwelling in order to provide notice of the 
scheduled termination to the tenants of said apartment 
building, motel, hotel or other multiple-unit dwelling. This 
notice shall inform the tenants of the date on or after which 
termination of service will occur and shall state the steps the 
tenants can take to avoid termination of service. If the 
billing address for any single unit service is different than 
the service location, a written notice shall be delivered or 
posted at a visible location on the premises where the service 
is to be terminated at least five (5) days prior to the 
scheduled termination. This notice shall inform the occupant 
of the date upon which, or after, termination of service will 
occur and shall state the steps the occupant can take to avoid 
termination of service. 

d. Any residential customer who has been 
notified that water service i s  to be terminated for non-payment 
of bills shall be given the opportunity to enter into a 
deferred payment agreement: Provided, That the customer has 
demonstrated an ability to pay but only in installments. The 
customer shall be informed at the time a disconnect notice is 
issued of the availability of a reasonable payment plan. The 
conditions surrounding the deferred payment agreement shall be 
as follows: 

A. The details of the deferred payment 
agreement are to be negotiated between the utility and the 
customer and may consider several factors, including, but not 
limited to the following: amount of the bill; ability of the 
customer to pay; payment history; time the debt has been 
outstanding; reasons why the debt has been outstanding; and any 
other relevant factors. 

B. 
a carrying charge ' crf' 
balance subject to a d 
however, That any uti1 
balances pursuant to it 
charging additional inte 

Utilities shall be allowed to collect 
s i x  percent ( 6 8 )  on any outstanding 
eferred payment agreement: Provided, 
ity which charges interest on unpaid 
s tariff shall be precluded from also 
rest pursuant to this rule. 

-10- 

16

Section VI, Item B.

Jacob Skeens
Highlight



17

Section VIII, Item A.



18

Section VIII, Item A.



19

Section VIII, Item A.



20

Section VIII, Item A.



AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE CEREDO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

ARTICLE 157.  PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Section 157.01. – Created; members; qualifications; appointment; vacancies. 
 

There is hereby created the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission, which shall consist of five 

members. One member of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall be a member of 

Council, appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council for a term coextensive with his 

term as a member of Council. One member shall be a member of the administrative 

department of the Town or a designee, appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council 

for a term coextensive with his term of office. The other three members of the Ceredo 

Municipal Planning Commission shall be residents and taxpayers of the Town, who shall be 

appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council. All members of the Ceredo Municipal 

Planning Commission shall be qualified by experience and knowledge in matters pertaining to 

the development of the municipality, and at least three members shall have resided in Ceredo 

for at least three years prior to their respective dates of appointment. 

 

The membership of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall conform to the 

requirements of West Virginia statutes relating thereto, and to W.Va. Code, 8A-2-2, in particular. 

Members of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission other than the Council member shall 

be appointed on or before January 1 of each year, to take office on January 1 of the year in 

which appointed, for staggered terms of three years each and until their successors are duly 

appointed and qualified, provided, the initial appointments other than the Council member and 

administrative staff member, shall be for terms of one, two, and three years. Vacancies other 

than those due to expiration of term shall be filled for the unexpired term only. Members shall 

serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for the reasonable and necessary 

expenses actually incurred in the performance of their duties. 

 

Section 157.02. – Official name; powers and duties. 

 
The official name shall be the “Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission,” and the body is hereby 

vested with the powers and it shall perform the duties prescribed for municipal planning 

commissions, with respect to planning as well as to zoning, in W.Va. Code, 8A-2-1 et seq. 

 

Section 157.03. – General purpose. 

 

21

Section VIII, Item B.



The general purpose of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall be to develop a 

comprehensive plan for future development by making careful and comprehensive surveys and 

studies of present conditions and future growth of the Town, with due regard its relation to 

neighboring territory, with the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, 

adjusted and harmonious development of the Town and its environs which will, in accordance 

with present and future needs, best promote health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 

prosperity and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in the process of 

development, including, among other things, adequate provision for traffic, the promotion of 

healthful and convenient distribution of population, the promotion of good civic design and 

arrangement, prevention of urban sprawl, wise and efficient expenditure of public funds, and 

the adequate provision of public utilities and other public requirements, including the 

preparation of a zoning ordinance for consideration by Council. 

 

Section 157.04. – Planning; approval of commission required. 

 
(a) The duties of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission include the preparing of plans 

for the development of the whole or any portion of the Town and any land outside 

thereof, which in the opinion of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission bears 

relation to the planning of the Town; provided, that the power of the Ceredo Municipal 

Planning Commission shall not extend beyond the territorial limits of the Town except so 

far as is reasonably necessary to protect the community, both within and without the 

corporate limits, against inadequate streets, highways and utilities, and inadequately 

planned and zoned territory. Such plans shall show recommendations for new streets, 

bridges, parks, and other public areas or public improvements and matters properly 

pertaining to the purposes of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission. 

 

(b) Before final action is taken by the Town or any department thereof on the location and 

design of any public building, public memorial, street, alleyway, park, playground or 

other public area, such question shall be submitted to the Ceredo Municipal Planning 

Commission for investigation and report. 

 

(c) The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall have the authority to work in 

conjunction with the state, county, and neighboring municipalities regarding the 

planning and development of areas outside the corporate limits of the Town. 

 

Section 157.05. – Employing help; budget; cooperation from other officials. 

 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall have the power and authority, subject to 

approval of Council as hereinafter provided, to employ engineers and clerks, or any other help 

22

Section VIII, Item B.



necessary and to meet all such expenses. The Commission shall submit to the Mayor and 

Council its budget requests for each fiscal year, and thereafter shall submit itemized expenses 

and amounts, and the purposes. The Council shall in its discretion make such budget allowances 

to the Commission as it deems proper. All officials and employees of the Town shall, so far as 

practicable, give their services and submit any such data or information as may be required to 

promote and effectuate the purposes of this Article. 

 

Section 157.06. – President, vice-president and secretary; rules; meetings; 

records. 

 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission, from its membership, shall elect a president and 

vice-president and shall appoint a secretary. The Commission shall adopt such rules as may be 

necessary for the transaction of its business, hold regular meetings open to the public and shall 

keep a record of its official proceedings which shall be open to the public. 

 

Section 157.07. – Contracts for expenditure of money. 

 
No contract for the expenditure of money by the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall 

be executed by the Commission or become effective and binding on the Town until such 

contract has been attested by the secretary of the Commission and approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

 

Section 157.08. – Office. 

 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall maintain an office in the Town Hall and the 

office of the Town Clerk is hereby designated as the office of the Ceredo Municipal Planning 

Commission. All records of the Commission shall be kept in that office, and the mailing address 

of the Commission shall be the address of Town Hall. 

 

Section 157.09. – Plats or replats of land laid out in building lots. 

 
All plans, plats or replats of land laid out in building lots, and the streets intended to be 

dedicated to public use, shall be submitted to the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission for its 

consideration, and no such plat or replat shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of the County 

Court, as provided by law in other cases, until such plat or replat has endorsed upon it, the fact 

that it has first been submitted to the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission and by the 

Commission to the Mayor and duly approved by Council. 

 

 

23

Section VIII, Item B.



First Reading: February 5, 2024 

 

Second Reading: March 4, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Paul A. Billups, Mayor 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jacob M. Skeens, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

24

Section VIII, Item B.


	Top
	Section IV, Item A.	Minutes from Regular Meeting February 5, 2024
	February 5, 2024 Town Council Meeting (Regular) Minutes

	Section V, Item A.	Account Balances
	TREASURER Report -FEB 2024

	Section V, Item B.	Approval of Expenditures
	EXPENDITURE REPORT MARCH 2024

	Section VI, Item A.	Robert Robson - CVFD (EMS Levy)
	Proposed Wayne County Levy

	Section VI, Item B.	Sharon Walker - Utility Notice Letters
	Late Mailer_02-22-2024_cycle1
	pscrules 1

	Section VIII, Item A.	Water Utility Tariff
	Water Increase Draft

	Section VIII, Item B.	Ordinance to Create Planning Commission - 2nd Reading
	Planning Commission

	Bottom

